
 - 1 - 

ANNUAL MEETING 

OF THE 

GLENBARD WASTEWATHER AUTHORITY 

 

Agenda 

 

November 3, 2016 

Dinner 5:30 pm 

Meeting 6:00 pm 

Lorraine G. Gerhardt Community Room 

Village Hall 

Village of Lombard 

255 E. Wilson 

Lombard, Illinois  

 

1.0 Call to Order 

 

2.0 Roll Call 

 

3.0 Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.0 Introduction of Board Members and the GWA Team 

 

5.0 Public Comment 

 

6.0 Consent Agenda 

 

Motion to Approve the Minutes from the November 23, 2015 Annual Meeting of the Glenbard Wastewater 

Authority Board. 

 

7.0 Annual Financial Reports FY2015 (Lauterbach & Amen, LLP) 

 

Jamie Wilkey, a Partner in the firm of Lauterbach & Amen, LLP will briefly review the financial status of 

the Authority for the FY2015 period ending December 31, 2015. Usual areas for review are: fund equity, 

receivables, payables, liabilities, service fee, maintenance, cash flow and flow splits. 

 

Motion to Accept the FY2015 Annual Financial Reports as presented by Christina Coyle and Jamie 

Wilkey, Lauterbach and Amen, LLP. 

 

8.0 Comments by GWA Full Board Chairperson - President Keith Giagnorio, Village of Lombard 

 

9.0 Executive Director, Erik Lanphier, will summarize significant events from CY2016 and present 

information on goals and projects that are planned for CY2017. 

 

10.0 Proposed CY2017 Budget 

 

 Operations and Maintenance - $4,184,550 

 Capital Plan – $14,717,000 

 

Motion to Approve the CY2017 Glenbard Wastewater Authority Budget in the amount of $18,901,550.  

 

11.0 Other Business 

 

12.0 Adjournment 





Thursday, April 17, 2014

6:30 PM

Village of Lombard

Village Hall

255 East Wilson Ave.

Lombard, IL  60148

villageoflombard.org

Lorraine G. Gerhardt Community Room

Glenbard Wastewater Authority

Village President Keith Giagnorio, Trustee Dan Whittington, Trustee Mike Fugiel, 

Trustee Reid Foltyniewicz, Trustee Peter Breen, Trustee Laura Fitzpatrick, Trustee Bill 

Ware and Village Clerk Sharon Kuderna

Glen Ellyn Village President Alexander Demos, Trustee Jim Burket, Trustee Dean 

Clark, Trustee Timothy Elliott, Trustee Peter Ladesic, Trustee Diane McGinley, Trustee 

Timothy O'Shea and Village Clerk Catherine Galvin

Minutes



April 17, 2014Glenbard Wastewater Authority Minutes

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance1.0

The regular meeting of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority comprised 

of the Village Board of the Village of Glen Ellyn and the Village Board 

of the Village of Lombard was called to order by Village President 

Giagnorio at 6: 30 p.m. Thursday, April 17, 2014 in the Community 

Room of the Lombard Village Hall.  Acting Village Clerk Janet Downer 

led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Roll Call2.0

Keith Giagnorio, Mike Fugiel, Reid Foltyniewicz, Peter Breen, Laura 

Fitzpatrick, Bill Ware, Alexander Demos, Glen Ellyn Village Clerk 

Catherine Galvin, Jim Burket, Timothy Elliott, Peter F. Ladesic, Diane 

McGinley, and Trustee Timothy O'Shea

Present 13 - 

Sharon Kuderna, Dan Whittington, and Dean ClarkAbsent 3 - 

Staff Present:

Village of Glen Ellyn:

Director of Finance Kevin Wachtel

Director of Public Works Julius Hansen 

Village Clerk Catherine Galvin

Village of Lombard:

Village Manager Scott Niehaus 

Director of Finance Tim Sexton

Director of Public Works Carl Goldsmith 

Executive Coordinator Carol Bauer 

Glenbard Wastewater Authority:

Wastewater Manager Erik Lanphier

Sr. Maintenance Mechanic Jay Dahlberg

Sr. Electronics Technician Rick Freeman 

Sr. Plant Operator David Goodalis

Administrative Secretary Gayle Lendabarker

Legal Counsel Greg Dose 

Introduction of Board Members and Staff3.0

Staff of the Village of Glen Ellyn, Village of Lombard and Glenbard 

Wastewater Authority were introduced.   

Approval of Minutes4.0

Public Comment5.0

Page 1Village of Lombard



April 17, 2014Glenbard Wastewater Authority Minutes

Consent Agenda6.0

Motion to approve the minutes from the April 15, 2013 Annual Meeting of the 

Glenbard Wastewater Authority Meeting.

Annual Financial Report FY 2013 (Wolf & Company, LLP)7.0

John ________,  representative from Wolf and Company, LLP 

provided an overview of the financial status of the Glenbard 

Wastewater Authority as of April 30, 2013 reviewing the fund equity, 

receivables, payables, liabilities, service fee, maintenance, cash flow 

and flow slits.  very well - no problems - balance 41 million net worth - 

very strong - 

Motion to accept the FY 2013 Audit as presented by Wolf & Company, LLP.

Intergovernmental Agreement Approval8.0

_________ indicated that minor changes had been made to the 

Intergovernmental Agreement between the Village of Lombard and the 

Village of Glen Ellyn with regard to the Glenbard Wastewater Authority 

reflecting budgeting changes the Village of Glen Ellyn and the 

Authority are undertaking with regard to switching from a fiscal year 

budget to a calendar year budget.  There is also one noted change to 

the definition of the Stormwater Plant versus the "Lombard" 

Stormwater Plant.  

Motion to approve the 2014 Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) as 

presented.

Executive Director Erik Lanphier will summarize significant events 

from the past fiscal year and present information on goals and 

projects planned for the upcoming 20 months.

9.0

Executive Director Erik Lanphier summarized the significant events 

from the past fiscal year and presented information on goals and 

projects planned for the upcoming 20 months.  

Erik noted the GWWA was formed in 1977 between the Village of 

Lombard and the Village of Glen Ellyn.  He highlighted the FY 2014 

accomplishments.  He reviewed environmental compliance, safety 

performance, and goals and plans for SY 2014.  He then proceeded to 

review the Operations and Maintenance Budget for SY 2014, and the 

O&M expenses for FY2012-SY2014.  Erik reviewed the proposed SY 

2014 Capital Plan for the GWWA and the FY 2012-SY2014 capital 

contributions and capital expenses.  The SY 2014 budget was 

Page 2Village of Lombard



April 17, 2014Glenbard Wastewater Authority Minutes

presented with Operation and Maintenance at $2,959,675 and Capital 

Improvement at $4,651,000 for a total of $7,610,675.  Erik reviewed 

the goals and plans for CY 2015, the proposed CY 2015 Capital Plan 

and the capital contributions and capital expenses for FY 2012 to CY 

2015.  The CY 2015 budget is proposed at Operation and 

Maintenance at $4,146,650 and Capital Improvement at $11,518,000 

with a total of $15,664,650.

Proposed SY 2014 Budget10.

0

Motion to approve the SY 2014 Glenbard Wastewater Authority Budget in the 

amount of $7,610,675.

Proposed CY 2015 Budget11.

0

Motion to approve the CY 2015 Glenbard Wastewater Authority Budget in the 

amount of $15,664,650.

Other Business12.

0

Adjournment13.

0

Page 3Village of Lombard













GLENBARD V/ASTEWATER
AUTHORITY GLEN ELLYI{, TLLNOIS

MANAGEMENT LETTER

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 3I,2OI5



27w457 WARRENVILLE RD. . WARRENVILLE, ILLINOIS 60555

Lauterbaah &, Amen, LLP
CER-TIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

PHONE 630.393.1483 . FAX 630.393.2516

www.lauterbachamen.com

lll{ay 4,2016

The Honorable Chairman
Members of the Board of Directors
Glenbard Wastewater Authority
Glen Ellyn,Illinois

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Glenbard Vy'astewater Authority, for
the fiscal year ended December 31,2015, we considered its internal control structure in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the pulpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to
provide ¿Nsurance on the internal control structure.

We do not intend to imply that our audit failed to disclose commendable aspects of your system and
structure. For your consideration we herein submit our comments and suggestions which are designed to
assist in effecting improvements in internal controls and procedures. Those less significant matters, if any,
which arose during the course of the audit, were reviewed with management as the audit field work
progressed.

The accompanying comments and recommendations are intended solely for the information and use of the
Members of the Board of Directors, management, and others within the Glenbard Wastewater Authority.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed
many of these comments and suggestions with various Authority personnel. We would be pleased to
discuss our comments and suggestions in further detail with you at your convenience, to perform any
additional study of these matters, or to review the procedures necessary to bring about desirable changes.

We commend the finance department for the well prepared audit package and we appreciate the courtesy
and assistance given to us by the entire Authority staff.

/r-tt"J*A ' (]"'*^t ¿P
LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP



PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1. INVESTMENT POLICY

Comment

Previously and during our current year-end audit procedures, we noted that the Glenbard

Wastewaier Authority does not have a formal written investment policy and instead uses the same

investment policy as the Viltage of Glen Ellyn. A well-written investment policy will provide the

Board with a strong internal control for cash and investment related transactions as well as a

benchmark for monitoring the success of its investment program.

Recommendation

It is recommended that Glenbard Wastewater Authority create and adopt a formal investment

policy. The policy should outline general investment objectives, authorized investments,

iafekeeping and custody requirements and any other information pertinent to the investment

policy.

Status

This comment has not been implemented and will be repeated in the future.

2. GASB STATEMENT NO. 67 FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION PLANS AND

Mr NO. OS ACCOUNTTNC A.Nn rrNA.NCrAI, REpOnrrNc roR
PENSIONS

Cor4ment

In June 20l2,the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 67,

Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, which applies to individual pension plans issuing their

own audited irnancial statements, and Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor

Pensions,which applies to the state and local government employers that sponsor pension plans.

The Statements apply to the reporting of the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) for the

District. The Statements establish standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred

outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures related to the

pension plans. The Statements specifically identify the methods and assumptions that are to be

used in calculating and disclosing these pension-related accounts in the financial statements and

also provide for additional note disclosures and required supplementary information. The

Statements are intended to improve information provided by state and local govemment

employers regarding financial support to their pension plans, and ultimately requires that the

totål net pensìon Habilities of IMRF be recorded on the face of the financial statements of the

sponsoring government. GASB Statement No. 67 is applicable to the separately issued financial

siatementJ of tne pension plan for the year ended December 31,2014. GASB Statement No. 68

is applicable to the Authority's financial statements for the year ended December 3I,2015.



PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS - Continued

2. GASB STATEMENT NO. 67 FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION PLANS AND
GASB STATEMENT NO. 68 ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING F'OR
PENSIONS - Continued

Recommendation

IMRF will automatically be providing the necessary information to all member agencies; we
recornmend the Authority review the information provided by IMRF. Lauterbach & Amen, LLP
will also work directly with the Authority to assist in the implementation process, including
assistance in determining the implementation timeline with the Authority, providing all
framework for the financial statements in order to complete the implementation, and assist in
answering any questions or concerns the Authority might have related to the implementation
process or requirements.

Status

This comment has been implemented and will not be repeated in the future.



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY  

GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

 

 

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  

DECEMBER 31, 2015



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Table of Contents 

 

 

PAGE 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ......................................................................................... 1 - 2 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS .......................................................... MD&A 1 - 10 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 Statement of Net Position ................................................................................................................ 3 - 4 
 

 Statement Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position  ............................................................. 5 
 

 Statement of Cash Flows ...................................................................................................................... 6 
  

 Notes to Financial Statements ........................................................................................................ 7 - 27 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

 Schedule of Employer Contributions 

  Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund ...............................................................................................28 
 

 Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Net Pension Liability 

  Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund ...............................................................................................29 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 
 

 Combining Statement of Net Position ......................................................................................... 30 - 31 

  

 Combining Statement Revenues, Expenses, and  

  Changes in Net Position .................................................................................................................32 
 

 Combining Statement of Cash Flows ..................................................................................................33 
 

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in  

  Net Position – Budget and Actual – Operating Sub-Fund ..................................................... 34 - 35 
 

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in  

  Net Position – Budget and Actual – Equipment Replacement Sub-Fund ............................. 36 - 37 
 

 Schedule of Comparative Flows (Unaudited) ......................................................................................38 
 

 Schedule of Allocation Costs (Unaudited) .................................................................................. 39 - 41 

 
 



FINANCIAL SECTION 



 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 



27W457 WARRENVILLE RD. . WARRENVILLE, ILLINOIS 60555

Lauterb ach & Amen, LLP at k''
.ti #

._ ,È ,ty

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

PHONE 630.393.1483 . FAX 630.393.251 6

www.lauterbachâmen.cÕm

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

l|l4ay 4,2016

The Honorable Chairman
Members of the Board of Directors
Glenbard Wastewater Authority
Glen Ellyn, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the Authority's
preparation and fair presentation of the hnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidenoe we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois, as of December 31, 2075,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



 2 

Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois 
May 4, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents and budgetary information reported in the 
required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois’, basic financial statements. The supplemental 
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial 
statements.  
 
The supplemental schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental schedules are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  
 
The Schedule of Comparative Flows and the Schedule of Allocation of Costs have not been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

 
LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

 

 

MD&A 1 

This discussion and analysis of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority (the “Authority”) is designed to provide 

the reader an objective and easily readable analysis of the Authority’s financial activities for the fiscal year 

2015 which began on January 1, 2015 and concluded on December 31, 2015. Also highlighted in this 

analysis are significant financial transactions and issues, comparisons to prior year activities, any relevant 

trend information, and changes in the Authority’s financial position.   

 

This discussion and analysis is an integral part of the Authority’s financial statements and should be read in 

conjunction with the financial statements, which begin on page 3. 

 

Background and Overview of the Financial Statements 

 

The Authority was established by an intergovernmental agreement dated November 28, 1977 between the 

neighboring villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn, Illinois for the purpose of jointly treating and processing 

wastewater.  Prior to creation of the Authority, wastewater processing was decentralized.  The Authority 

processes wastewater for the Villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn as well as certain other areas in DuPage 

County.  

 

The four principal components of the Authority are the Glenbard Plant, the Lombard Combined Sewerage 

Treatment Facility (LCSTF) facility, the North Regional Interceptor (NRI) and the South Regional 

Interceptor (SRI). The original construction cost of these facilities was approximately $43 million, with $32 

million contributed by a grant from the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and the 

remaining $11 million contributed by Lombard and Glen Ellyn. 

 

The Board of Directors of the Authority consists of the Village President and six Trustees from each of the 

villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn. The Executive Oversight Committee (EOC) is responsible for 

overseeing the operational aspects of the Authority’s activities and is composed of both Village Presidents, 

both Village Managers, one Trustee representative from each Village Board and one staff member, 

traditionally the Public Works Director, of each Village. The Committee meets monthly and reviews 

operational and staff reports, approves Authority expenditures, awards various contracts for services, reviews 

the financial statements, reviews and recommends an annual budget to the full Authority Board and performs 

other functions as defined in the intergovernmental agreement.  

 

The Village of Glen Ellyn is identified by the intergovernmental agreement as the “operating” or lead agency 

of the Authority. In its capacity as lead agency, Glen Ellyn performs operational supervision, accounting, 

personnel and administrative services for the Authority on a contractual basis.   

 

The Authority’s accounting and financial transactions are recorded in two separate funds – the Operating 

Fund and the Equipment Replacement Fund.   

 

The Operating Fund pays for the day-to-day operating costs of the Glenbard Plant, LCSTF, NRI and SRI and 

includes costs such as staff salaries and benefits, contractual services, sludge removal, utilities, insurance and 

related expenses. Operating costs are allocated between the Lombard and Glen Ellyn partners based on a five 

year rolling average of the percentage of wastewater flow contributed by each community.   



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

 

 

MD&A 2 

Each Village contributes a monthly amount to the Authority based on the adopted Operating Fund budget for 

the year. These contributions are adjusted two times per fiscal year based on actual wastewater flow share 

between the parties. Also, an adjustment is made after the conclusion of the fiscal year so that total year-end 

operating revenues are equivalent to total year-end operating expenses, excluding the adjustment for the 

IMRF pension obligation.   

 

The Equipment Replacement Fund was established to accumulate funds for the repair and replacement of 

plant components as needed and was a required element for the initial grant assistance received from the 

Federal EPA. The two partners contribute a budgeted amount to the Equipment Replacement Fund each year 

based the wastewater flow split percentage of the Glenbard Plant and associated infrastructure.   

 

Financial Highlights  

 

1. The Authority’s overall cash position at December 31, 2015 decreased by $1.19 million or decreased 

21% compared to balances at the close of the prior fiscal year.  The Operating Fund experienced a 

decrease in cash balance of $49,117, while the Equipment Replacement Fund’s cash balance 

decreased by $1.14 million. The Equipment Reserve Fund’s cash balance decreased due to 

investment in capital projects.  As part of the short fiscal 2014 closeout, both Villages transferred the 

operating surplus from short fiscal year 2014 to the Equipment Replacement Fund. See page 33 for 

detailed cash flow information. 

 

2. Total Operating Fund expenses for fiscal year 2015 were $4,188,187, an increase of $1,486,212 or 

55% compared to the previous short eight-month fiscal year. For additional information concerning 

changes in operating costs compared to the prior fiscal year, see pages 8 – 9 of this Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis. 

 

3. Total Operating Fund expenses were over the approved budget of $4,146,650 by $41,537 or 1%. 

Additional budget comparison information is located on pages 34 – 37. 

 

4. Amounts due from/(to) each of the Villages as of December 31, 2015, include following 

components: 

 

Village of Village of

Lombard Glen Ellyn Total 

Amounts Due from (to) Villages

Billing Adjustment for the Fiscal Year Ended on

December 31, 2015 $ (83,050) (59,107) (142,157)

Billing Adjustment - May 2015

to December 2015 70,989 (70,989)      -   

Miscellaneous Receivable (Payable)      -   16,886 16,886

Cumulative Balance Due from (to) Villages* (12,061) (113,210) (125,271)

 
  



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

 

 

MD&A 3 

5. The percentage of wastewater flow contributed by each of the partners to the Glenbard Plant for 2015 

compared to the previous two years is shown below: 

 

FY 2013/14 SY 2014 FY 2015

Lombard 55.39% 54.57% 54.75%

Glen Ellyn 44.61% 45.43% 45.25%  
 

A history of annual flow data is presented on page 32.  During SY2014, the Authority began 

preparing this analysis using a five-year rolling average of wastewater flow rather than actual 

wastewater flow.  The amount presented for FY2013/14 is actual flow whereas the SY 2014 and FY 

2015 are five-year rolling average wastewater flows.  

 

6. The Authority has a minimum working cash policy for its Operating Fund equal to 25% of operating 

expenses (see Note 3 on page - 18).  The Authority’s net working cash balance of $1,168,133 as of 

December 31, 2015 is equivalent to a 29.1% reserve level, above the minimum 25% level by 

$165,606. 

 

7. For FY 2015, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial 

Reporting for Pensions.  Implementation of this new Statement resulted in recording a net pension 

liability for the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) in the amount of $709,513 in the 

Statement of Net Position. Additional information required by this new GASB Statement can be 

found in the required supplementary information on pages 21 - 26 and in Note 4 of the footnotes.  

 
 

Authority’s Financial Analysis 

 

Net Position 

 

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities and provides information 

about the nature and amount of investments in resources and the obligations to creditors.  This statement 

provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of 

the Authority. 

 

A summary of the Authority’s Statement of Net Position is presented on the next page. 

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

 

 

MD&A 4 

FY 2013/14 SY 2014* FY 2015

Current and Other Assets  $  5,912,594  $  5,951,295  $  4,737,766 

Deferred Outflows                     -                     -         518,751 

Capital Assets    35,080,185    35,372,927    37,675,061 

Total Assets    40,992,779    41,324,222    42,931,578 

Long Term Debt      5,808,584      5,369,925      4,850,739 

Other Liabilities      1,603,295      1,797,623      3,080,999 

Total Liabilities      7,411,879      7,167,548      7,931,738 

Net Investment in Capital Assets    28,379,238    29,320,997    32,318,101 

Restricted      5,201,662      4,835,677      2,681,739 

Unrestricted                     -                     -                     - 

Total Net Position  $33,580,900  $34,156,674  $34,999,840  
 

 

 

 

The total net position of the Authority increased $855,851 to $34,999,840, an increase of 2.5% from SY 

2014, due to the contribution by the Villages of the previous year operating surplus to the Equipment 

Replacement Fund as well as increases in other revenue streams such as connection fees, leachate revenues 

and grant revenue.   

 

For more detailed information, see the Statement of Net Position beginning on page 3. 

*SY 2014 refers to a short eight-month fiscal year which ran from May 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014.  All 

other years presented are 12 month fiscal periods. 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

 

 

MD&A 5 

Activities 

 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position provides an indication of the Authority’s 

financial health.  A summary of the Authority’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 

Position is presented below. 

 

FY 2013/14 SY 2014* FY 2015

Operating Revenues  $  6,444,449  $  4,672,674  $  7,267,893 

Non-Operating Revenues         784,586         524,351         680,880 

Total Revenues      7,229,035      5,197,025      7,948,773 

Depreciation Expense      2,348,441      1,555,902      2,525,016 

Other Operating Expenses      4,159,105      2,893,372      4,416,232 

Non-Operating Expenses         161,360         171,977         151,674 

Total Expenses      6,668,906      4,621,251      7,092,922 

Changes in Net Position         560,129         575,774         855,851 

Net Position – Beginning of Year, as Restated    33,020,771    33,580,900    34,143,989 

Net Position – End of Year  $33,580,900  $34,156,674  $34,999,840 
 

 

 

 

 

For more detailed information, see the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position on 

page 5. 

 

Revenues 

 

Operating Fund Revenues 

 

Operating Fund operating revenues consist of contributions made by the villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn.  

These contributions are initially based on the adopted Operating Fund budget for the year and are adjusted so 

that total year-end operating revenues are equivalent to total year-end operating expenses.  Amounts that are 

contributed by the partners in excess of total year-end operating expenses are distributed based on each 

partner’s five-year rolling average wastewater flow and are recorded in the Statement of Net Position as 

liabilities payable to the respective Villages. 

  

*SY 2014 refers to a short eight-month fiscal year which ran from May 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014.  All other years presented 

are 12 month fiscal periods. 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

 

 

MD&A 6 

A comparison of Operating Fund operating revenues from charges to the Villages for the fiscal year ended 

December 31, 2015 compared to the previous two years is shown in the table below. 

 

Partner FY 2013/14 SY 2014* FY 2015

$ Change from SY 

2014 to FY 2015

% Change from SY 

2014 to FY 2015

Village of Lombard  $2,114,699  $2,506,847  $3,903,544  $               1,396,697 55.72%

Village of Glen Ellyn    1,629,750    2,165,827    3,364,349                   1,198,522 55.34%

    Total  $3,744,449  $4,672,674  $7,267,893  $               2,595,219 55.54%

 

 

 

 

 

Total combined operating revenues from charges to each Village increased by 55.54% compared to the prior 

fiscal year. This is due to the contrasting 8 month fiscal period versus the 12 month fiscal year in the prior 

period presented.  An 8-month fiscal period is 23% reduced from a calendar year from a time standpoint.  In 

addition, the Authority has increased capital contributions to the Equipment Replacement Sub-Fund required 

from each Village to fund capital needs for the Authority.  Capital contributions from both Villages in 

FY2013/2014 (a comparable 12 month period) were $2,700,000 as compared to $3,267,000 in FY 2015, a 

21% increase.  

  

*SY 2014 refers to a short eight-month fiscal year which ran from May 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014.  All other years presented 

are 12 month fiscal periods. 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

 

 

MD&A 7 

*SY 2014 refers to a short eight-month fiscal year which ran from May 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014.  All other years presented 

are 12 month fiscal periods. 

Equipment Replacement Fund Revenues 

A comparison of Equipment Replacement Fund revenues for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 

compared to the previous two years is shown in the table below: 

 

Revenue FY 2013/14 SY 2014* FY 2015

Lombard
1

1,424,709$      1,026,563$      1,713,122$      686,559$          66.9%

Glen Ellyn
1

1,275,291        933,637           1,553,878        620,241            66.4%

Excess Contributions
2

525,233           292,076           244,704           (47,372)             -16.2%

Connection Fees
3

54,614             63,192             145,130           81,938              129.7%

Leachate Revenue
4

106,050           101,765           133,389           31,624              31.1%

Cell Tower Revenue
5

48,960             17,306             26,651             9,345                54.0%

Investment Income
6

8,645               (76,255)            10,918             87,173              NA

Other Income
7

28,638             49,456             110,871           61,415              124.2%

Total Revenues 3,472,140$      2,407,740$      3,938,663$      1,530,923$       63.6%

$ Change from 

SY 2014 to FY 

2015

% Change from 

SY 2014 to FY 

2015

 
 

1. Each partner contributes an annual amount to be allocated for reinvestment in plant infrastructure and 

rehabilitation.  Contributions are determined annually as a part of the budget preparation process and 

are allocated based on the wastewater flows contributed by each partner at the Glenbard Plant. 

 
2. As part of the closeout of the SY 2014 fiscal year, both Villages contributed their portion of the 

operating surplus in the Operating Fund to the Equipment Replacement Fund.  

 
3. New connections to the respective sanitary sewer systems of the partners are charged a fee which is 

paid into the Equipment Replacement Fund.  FY 2015 saw increased fees due to a few larger 

development projects. 

 
4. Beginning in FY2012/13, the Authority began processing Leachate at the rate of two trucks per day.  

In FY2013/14, the number of trucks increased to three per day.  In April 2014, the number of trucks 

was increased to a maximum of 6 per day. 

 
5. GWA has an agreement with AT&T to house a cell phone tower on its premises. 

 
6. During SY 2014, the Authority was the victim of a fraudulent investment.  In September 2014, a loss 

of $95,894 was realized.  This negatively impacted investment income in SY2014. 

 
7. The Authority participates in the EnerNoc Demand Response Program, which enables program 

participants to receive payment for being available to reduce or eliminate electricity consumption 

when the reliability of the electric grid is in jeopardy.  The Authority also received a $57,000 grant 

for the Combined Heat and Power capital project.  



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

 

 

MD&A 8 

Expenses 

 

Operating Fund Expenses 

 

A comparison of Operating Fund expenses for FY 2015 compared to the previous two years is shown in the 

table below: 

FY 2013/14 SY 2014 FY 2015

2014 

Percent of 

Total

$ Change from 

SY14 to the 

FY15

% Change from 

SY14 to the 

FY15

Personnel Services
1 $1,361,274 $1,012,936 $1,545,124 36.89%  $           532,188 52.5%

IMRF Pension Expense                -                  -          178,077 4.25%               178,077 0.0%

Contractual Services

    Maintenance 518,448 347,100 444,683 10.62% 97,583 28.1%

    Service Charge 123,100 84,000 126,500 3.02% 42,500 50.6%

    Sludge Removal
2 112,607 102,416 150,591 3.60% 48,175 47.0%

    Utilities
3 770,200 592,736 1,001,479 23.91% 408,743 69.0%

    Insurance
4 376,136 276,698 399,545 9.54% 122,847 44.4%

    Other 160,181 183,780 191,498 4.57% 7,718 4.2%

Commodities 136,539 102,309 150,690 3.60% 48,381 47.3%

Total $3,558,485 $2,701,975 $4,188,187 100.00% $1,486,212 55.0%

 

 

1. Personnel services include salaries for 16 full-time and 7 part-time/seasonal staff positions, overtime, 

Social Security and Medicare employer costs, and required retirement contributions to the Illinois 

Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) for full-time employees.  Costs of employee health plan benefits are 

reflected in the “Insurance” category.  The Authority added a full-time Pretreatment Coordinator 

position during SY 2014. 

 
2. Increase in maintenance costs is related to comparing a 12 month fiscal period to an 8 month fiscal 

period.  

 
3. Service charge fees were increased based on the Chicago Metro CPI calculation of 0.5%.  This increase 

is based off of an annualized SY 2014 amount of $125,800. 

 
4. While sludge removal costs were increased, they remained below the budgeted amount of $180,000. 

 
5. Utility usage is impacted mainly by weather. Electric, water and natural gas costs were increased from 

the prior year.  The Short Year also does not include the winter months of January to March, tempering 

the utility costs.  

  

*SY 2014 refers to a short eight-month fiscal year which ran from May 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014.  All other years presented 

are 12 month fiscal periods. 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

 

 

MD&A 9 

 
6. Insurance costs include the Authority’s participation in the Village of Glen Ellyn employee health 

benefits program and the Municipal Insurance Cooperative Agency (MICA) which provides property, 

liability, workers compensation and other general coverages.  The following schedule presents a 

summary of the cost of insurance coverage for fiscal year 2015 compared to the previous two years: 

 

Insurance Program FY 2013/14 SY 2014* FY 2015

$ Change from 

SY 2014 to FY 

2015

% Change from 

SY 2014 to FY 

2015

Staff Health Benefits  $    208,074  $127,352  $214,154  $              86,802 68.2%

General Insurance        213,385    149,346    185,391                  36,045 24.1%

Total Insurance  $    421,459  $276,698  $399,545  $            122,847 44.4%

 
 

 

 

 

The Authority experienced a slight increase in its health insurance premiums in FY 2015.  The increase 

from SY 2014 is due to comparing an 8 month fiscal period to a 12 month fiscal period. 

 

General insurance program costs mainly comprise the annual premium billing from the MICA pool for 

liability and workers compensation insurance.  The Authority has had favorable claims experience over 

the past five years, which has a positive impact on renewal costs.   

 

 

  

*SY 2014 refers to a short eight-month fiscal year which ran from May 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014.  All other years presented 

are 12 month fiscal periods. 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

 

 

MD&A 10 

Equipment Replacement Fund Expenses 

 

The Authority invested over $4.8 million in the continued replacement and rehabilitation of various capital 

equipment and plant upgrades during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.  The major projects undertaken 

during the year were the completion of the Valley View Lift Station improvements, the Combined Heat and 

Power project and the Facility Improvement Plan.  

 

Capital Assets 

 

A schedule of the Authority’s capital asset balances is presented below. 

 

FY 2013/14 SY 2014 FY 2015

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated  $     416,967  $  1,912,829  $  3,689,853 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated    85,749,123    85,976,864    88,870,523 

Less:  Accumulated Depreciation   (51,085,905)   (52,516,766)   (54,885,315)

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net    34,663,218    33,460,098    33,985,208 

Net Capital Assets  $35,080,185  $35,372,927  $37,675,061 
 

 

 

 

 

For more detailed information, see Note 3 on page 13. 

 

Long-Term Debt 

 

A schedule of the Authority’s State of Illinois EPA loan balances at December 31, 2015 is presented below. 

 

Outstanding

Amount

Digester Project  $   5,356,960 

Total Loan Payable  $   5,356,960 

 
 

For more detailed information, see Note 3 on pages 14 – 15. 

 

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management 

 

This financial report is designed to provide the users of these financial statements an overview of the Authority’s 

operations and finances and to demonstrate accountability for the funds it receives.  Questions concerning these 

financial statements may be directed to the Authority at 21W551 Bemis Road, Glen Ellyn, IL 60137. 

 

*SY 2014 refers to a short eight-month fiscal year which ran from May 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014.  All other years presented 

are 12 month fiscal periods. 



 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2015

(with Comparative Information for the Eight Months Ended December 31, 2014)

See Following Page



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2015

(with Comparative Information for the Eight Months Ended December 31, 2014)

December 31,

2014

Current Assets

Restricted Cash and Investments

Working Cash Account $ 1,178,745 1,227,862

Equipment Replacement Account 3,371,262 4,509,129

Accounts Receivable - Net of Allowances

Accounts Receivable 21,525 23,275

Member Contributions 20,074 15,134

Deposits 40,828 70,897

Inventory and Prepaids 105,332 104,998

Total Current Assets 4,737,766 5,951,295

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

Nondepreciable Capital Assets 3,689,853 1,912,829

Depreciable Capital Assets 88,870,523 85,976,864

Accumulated Depreciation (54,885,315) (52,516,766)

Total Noncurrent Assets 37,675,061 35,372,927

Total Assets 42,412,827 41,324,222

Deferred Items - IMRF 518,751 -       

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 42,931,578 41,324,222

ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

December 31,

2015

 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

3



December 31,

2014

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 1,473,842 626,172

Members Payable 145,345 244,701

Accrued Payroll 60,005 55,207

Interest Payable 56,408 62,074

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 532,154 707,498

Total Current Liabilities 2,267,754 1,695,652

Noncurrent Liabilities

Compensated Absences 103,732 101,971

Net Pension Liability - IMRF 709,513 -       

Digester Loan Payable 4,850,739 5,369,925

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,663,984 5,471,896

Total Liabilities 7,931,738 7,167,548

Net Investment in Capital Assets 32,318,101 29,320,997

Restricted 2,681,739 4,835,677

Total Net Position 34,999,840 34,156,674

LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

December 31,

2015

 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

4



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015

(with Comparative Information for the Eight Months Ended December 31, 2014)

December 31,

2014

Operating Revenues

Charges to Villages $ 7,267,893 4,672,674

Operating Expenses

 Personnel Services 1,545,124 1,012,936

IMRF Pension Expense 178,077 -       

Contractual Services

Maintenance 444,683 347,100

Service Charge 126,500 84,000

Sludge Removal 150,591 102,416

Utilities 1,001,479 592,736

Insurance 399,545 276,698

Other 191,498 183,780

Commodities 150,690 102,309

Maintenance of Capital Facilities and Equipment 228,045 191,397

Depreciation 2,525,016 1,555,902

Total Operating Expenses 6,941,248 4,449,274

Operating Income 326,645 223,400

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Connection Fees 145,130 63,192

Surplus Contributions 244,704 292,076

Leachate Revenues 133,389 101,765

Enernoc Demand Response 23,960 13,440

Cell Tower Revenues 26,651 17,306

Other Income 36,326 19,694

Grant Revenue 57,000 -       

Sale of Capital Assets (11,735) 16,878

Investment Income (Loss) 13,720 (87,310)

Interest Expense (139,939) (84,667)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 529,206 352,374

Change in Net Position 855,851 575,774

Net Position - Beginning as Restated 34,143,989 33,580,900

Net Position - Ending 34,999,840 34,156,674

December 31,

2015

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

5



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015

(with Comparative Information for the Eight Months Ended December 31, 2014)

December 31,

2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from Charges to Villages $ 7,949,863 5,139,351

Payments to Employees (1,723,201) (1,012,936)

Payments to Suppliers (1,765,307) (1,475,751)

4,461,355 2,650,664

Cash Flows from Capital and Related

Financing Activities

Purchase of Capital Assets (4,859,061) (1,848,643)

Disposal of Capital Assets 31,911 -       

Interest and Fiscal Charges (139,939) (84,667)

Payment of Loans Principal (694,970) (649,017)

(5,662,059) (2,582,327)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Investment Income (Loss) 13,720 (87,310)

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,186,984) (18,973)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Beginning 5,736,991 5,755,964

Ending 4,550,007 5,736,991

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income 326,645 223,400

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating 

Income to Net Income to Net Cash

Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense 2,525,016 1,555,902

Other Income 655,425 524,351

(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets 26,545 (57,674)

Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 927,724 404,685

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 4,461,355 2,650,664

December 31,

2015

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

6



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

7 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Glen Ellyn, Illinois, Illinois (the “Authority”) was created and 

established by an agreement dated November 28, 1977, between the Villages of Lombard, Illinois and 

Glen Ellyn, Illinois, for the purpose of jointly treating and processing wastewater. This agreement has been 

amended since inception. The last amendment was April 17, 2014. The wastewater is treated in two plants, 

known as the Glenbard Wastewater Authority and the Lombard Storm Water Facility.  
 

Construction of the facilities was financed by monies appropriated by the Villages and by grants from the 

U.S. Environmental Protection Authority. The Village of Glen Ellyn, as the designated lead Authority, 

maintained the Glenbard Lead Authority Construction Fund, which included all transactions relating to 

planning, design, and construction of the wastewater treatment facilities. The cost of the facilities, which 

aggregated $43,297,682, was contributed to the Authority by the Glenbard Lead Authority Construction 

Fund.  
 

In accordance with the 1977 agreement, as amended in April 1998 and April 2014, the Village of Glen 

Ellyn provides certain management services (administration, personnel, payroll, data processing, and 

accounting services) to the Authority. The Village is reimbursed for such services and, therefore, 

receives a service charge (overhead fee) pursuant to the agreement.  
 

The government-wide financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible 

for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and 

Interpretations). The more significant of the Authority’s accounting policies established in GAAP and 

used by the Authority are described below.  
 

REPORTING ENTITY 
 

In evaluating how to define the Authority for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all 

potential component units. Criteria for including a component unit in the Authority’s reporting entity 

principally consist of the potential component unit’s financial interdependency and accountability to the 

Authority. Based on those criteria, there are no potential component units to be included in the reporting 

entity. The Authority itself is not a component unit of another governmental entity, but rather is considered 

to be a jointly governed organization.  
 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
 

In the Statement of Net Position, the Authority’s activities are reported on a full accrual, economic 

resources basis, which recognizes all long-term assets/deferred outflows and receivables as well as long-

term obligations/deferred inflows. 
 

The Authority uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund 

accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating 

transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity 

with a self-balancing set of accounts. 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

8 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION – Continued  
 

The Authority utilizes a single proprietary fund. Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar 

to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound 

financial administration. Goods or services from such activities are provided to outside parties. 
 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

 

Measurement Focus 

 

All proprietary funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting objectives of 

this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position, financial 

position, and cash flows. All assets/deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows (whether current or 

noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net 

position. 

 

Basis of Accounting 

 

The Authority’s basic financial statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 

accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the 

liability is incurred or economic asset used.  

 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 

revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 

connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 

the Authority are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses include the cost of services, 

administrative expenses, and depreciation and amortization on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 

not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

 

ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET 

POSITION OR EQUITY 

 

Cash and Investments 

 

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, the cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash 

on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less 

from the date of purchase. Investments are reported at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices 

for the same or similar investments. 

 

The Authority operates under the Village of Glen Ellyn’s investment policy as the Village is responsible 

for the Authority’s administration. 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

9 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 

ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET 

POSITION OR EQUITY – Continued  
 

Restricted Cash and Investments 

 

Refer to the working cash account and equipment replacement account sections in the Net Position note 

for details on assets restricted under intergovernmental and grant agreements.  

 

Receivables 

 

In the government-wide financial statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and 

not yet received. There is no allowance for uncollectible since these amounts are expected to be fully 

collectible. The Authority reports member contributions as its major receivable. 

 

Prepaids/Inventories  
 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 

prepaids in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaids/inventories are valued at 

cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.  

 

Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets purchased or acquired are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. For 

movable property, the Authority’s capitalization policy includes all items with a unit cost of $20,000 or 

more and an estimated useful life that is greater than one year. Renovations to buildings and land 

improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are 

capitalized. Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the year in which the 

expense was incurred. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of 

donation. Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the following estimated 

useful lives of the assets: 
 

Vehicles 7 Years 

Land Improvements  7 - 20 Years 

Equipment  10 - 15 Years 

Buildings and Improvements 10 - 45 Years 

Sewer Lines 40 - 50 Years 
 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 

Deferred outflow/inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 

period and therefore will not be recognized as an outflow or resources (expense)/inflow of resources 

(revenue) until that future time.



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

10 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  

 

ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET 

POSITION OR EQUITY – Continued  

 

Compensated Absences 

 

The Authority grants a specific number of annual leave hours monthly with pay to its employees. Earned 

annual leave and compensatory time may be accumulated and is payable to the employee upon 

termination of employment and, therefore, is accrued through year-end. Long-term accumulated sick 

leave is not reimbursable upon termination of employment and, therefore, is not accrued. 

 

Long-Term Obligations 

 

In the financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in 

the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of 

the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond 

premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as expenses at the time of issuance. 

 

Net Position 

 

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in two 

components: 

 

Net Investment in Capital Assets – Consists of capital assets including 

restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by 

the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other 

borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 

improvement of those assets. 

 

Restricted – Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use 

either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or 

laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional 

provisions or enabling legislations. 

 

Unrestricted – All other net position balances that do not meet the 

definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.” 

 

The Authority considers restricted amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for 

purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund position is available.  

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

11 

NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY – Continued 

 

BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
 

Budgeted amounts used for comparison in this report are obtained from the operating budget of the 

Authority, approved by Glenbard Wastewater Authority Board of Directors, which is prepared in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, except that depreciation expense is not part of 

the operating budget, and note principal payments are budgeted as expenses. The budget amounts 

included in the supplemental information are from the final adopted budget, including all amendments, 

which were not significant. The budget lapses at the end of the fiscal year.  
 

NOTE 3 – DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Permitted Deposits and Investments – Statutes authorize the Authority to make deposits/invest in 

commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, 

obligations of States and their political subdivisions, credit union shares, repurchase agreements, 

commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services, 

and the Illinois Funds and Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund investment pools.  
 

Illinois Funds is an investment pool management by the Illinois Public Treasurer’s Office, which allows 

governments within the state to pool their funds for investment purposes. Although not registered with 

the SEC, Illinois Funds does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the investment company 

Act of 1940. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at the share price, the price for which the 

investment could be sold. 
 

The Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET) is a non-for-profit investment trust formed pursuant 

to the Illinois Municipal Code. IMET is managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating 

members. IMET is not registered with the SEC as an Investment Company. Investments in IMET are 

valued at the share price, the price for which the investment could be sold. 
 

Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk 
 

Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits totaled $119,524 and the bank 

balances totaled $580,209. The Authority also has $1,055,408 invested in the Illinois Funds and 

$3,375,075 in IMET at year end. 
 

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 

value of an investment. The Village’s investment policy states they will attempt to match its investments 

with anticipated cash flows requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the Village will not 

directly invest in securities maturing more than five years from the date of purchase. Any investment 

purchased with a maturity longer than four years must be supported with written documentation explaining 

the reason for the purchase and must be supported with written documentation explaining the reason for 

the purchase and must be specifically approved by the Village Board. The Authority’s investment in the 

Illinois Funds has an average maturity of less than one year and the Authority’s investment in IMET has 

an average maturity of less than one year to three years. 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

12 

NOTE 3 – DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued  

 

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – Continued  

 

Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk – Continued  

 

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 

obligations. The Village may invest in any type of security authorized by the State of Illinois Public Funds 

Investment Act (30 ILCS 235/) regarding the investment of public funds. The Authority’s investments in 

the Illinois Funds is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s and the Authority’s investment in IMET is rated 

AAAf by Standard & Poor’s. 

 

Custodial Credit Risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 

Authority’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Village’s policy requires that funds on deposit in 

excess of FDIC limits be secured by some form of collateral. The Village will accept government 

securities, obligations of federal agencies, obligations of federal instrumentalities, and obligations of the 

State of Illinois. At year end, the entire bank balance was covered by collateral, federal depository or 

equivalent insurance. 

 

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Authority will not 

be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 

outside party. At December 31, 2015, the Authority’s investment in the Illinois Funds and IMET funds are 

not subject to custodial credit risk. 

 

Concentration of Credit Risk. This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Authority’s 

investment in a single issuer. The Authority has a high percentage of its investments invested in one type 

of investment. At December 31, 2015, the Authority has over 5% of cash and investments invested in the 

Illinois Funds and in IMET. 

 

CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 

 

The Authority has entered into contracts for the construction or renovation of various facilities as 

follows: 

 

Expended Remaining

Project to Date Commitment

Combined Heat and Power Design $ 2,611,076 2,381,425

Facility Improvement Plan 889,023 317,728  
 

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

13 

NOTE 3 – DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 

 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

The following is a summary of capital assets as of the date of this report: 

 

Beginning  Ending

Balances Additions Deletions Balances

Nondepreciable Capital Assets

Land $ 189,755       -                  -                189,755         

Construction in Progress 1,723,074    4,860,752   3,083,728  3,500,098      

1,912,829    4,860,752   3,083,728  3,689,853      

Depreciable Capital Assets

Glenbard Plant 60,039,048  697,424      53,378       60,683,094    

Stormwater Plant 11,822,174  43,073        -                11,865,247    

North Regional Interceptor 10,579,053  172,706      -                10,751,759    

South Regional Interceptor 3,536,589    2,168,834   135,000     5,570,423      

85,976,864  3,082,037   188,378     88,870,523    

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Glenbard Plant 35,574,099  1,717,100   48,833       37,242,366    

Stormwater Plant 7,886,521    267,124      -                8,153,645      

North Regional Interceptor 6,461,108    301,352      -                6,762,460      

South Regional Interceptor 2,595,038    239,440      107,634     2,726,844      

52,516,766  2,525,016   156,467     54,885,315    

Total Net Depreciable Capital Assets 33,460,098  557,021      31,911       33,985,208    

Total Net Capital Assets 35,372,927  5,417,773   3,115,639  37,675,061    

 

 

Depreciation was allocated to the members as follows:  

 

Village of Lombard $ 1,320,205

Village of Glen Ellyn 1,204,811

2,525,016
 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

14 

NOTE 3 – DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 

 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

 

Loans Payable 
 

The Authority has entered into loan agreements to provide low interest financing for capital 

improvements. Loans currently outstanding are as follows: 

 

Ending

Issue Issuances Retirements Balances (a)

$ 187,010 -      187,010 -     (b)

5,864,920 -      507,960 5,356,960 (c)

6,051,930 -     694,970 5,356,960

Beginning

Balances

Biosolids Improvement Loan

Payable dated June 7, 2003, due in

annual installments of $186,758 to

$189,413 including interest at

2.570%, through June 7, 2015.

Anaerobic Digester Loan Payable

dated October 10, 2007, due in

annual installments of $319,271,

including interest at 2.500%,

through July 31, 2024.

 
 

(a) Includes construction interest. 

 

(b) Amount disbursed as of the date of the audit report is $3,306,983. Total approved loan amount is 

$5,230,340. 

 

(c) Amounts disbursed as of the date of the audit report is $7,703,497. Total approved loan amount 

is $7,700,000. The future debt service shown here has been calculated based on a preliminary 

repayment schedule issued by the IEPA and adjusted for final disbursements reimbursed. As of 

December 31, 2015, there were no additional loan requests outstanding. The original amount 

exceeds the $7,700,000 due to estimated construction interest.  

 

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

15 

NOTE 3 – DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 

 

LONG-TERM DEBT – Continued  

 

Long-Term Liability Activity 

 

Changes in long-term liabilities during the fiscal year were as follows: 

 

Amounts

Ending Due within

Additions Deductions Balances One Year

Compensated Absences $ 127,464 4,402 2,201 129,665 25,933

Net Pension Liability 141,003 568,510 -     709,513 -     

Loans Payable 6,051,930 -     694,970 5,356,960 506,221

6,320,397 572,912 697,171 6,196,138 532,154

Balances

Type of Debt as Restated

Beginning

 
 

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 

 

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, are as follows: 

 

 

Fiscal                      Contracts

Year                  BondsPrincipal Interest

2016 $ 506,221 130,780

2017 518,956 118,045

2018 532,009 104,990

2019 545,394 91,607

2020 559,115 77,887

2021 573,180 63,822

2022 587,599 49,402

2023 602,381 34,621

2024 617,534 19,467

2025 314,571 3,932

5,356,960 694,553

Loans

Payable

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

16 

NOTE 3 – DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 

 

NET POSITION  

 

Net Position Classification 

 

Net position consists of the following as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:  

 

December 31,

2014

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 32,318,101 29,320,997

Equipment Replacement Account (Restricted) 2,038,999 4,002,175

Working Cash Account (Restricted) 642,740 833,502

Operating Account (Unrestricted)      -        -   

    Total Net Position 34,999,840 34,156,674

December 31, 

2015

 

 

Net investment in capital assets was comprised of the following as of December 31, 2015 and December 

31, 2014: 

 

December 31,

2014

Business-Type Activities

Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 37,675,061 35,372,927

Less Capital Related Debt:

Loans Payable (5,356,960) (6,051,930)

Net Investment in Capital Assets 32,318,101 29,320,997

2015

December 31, 

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

17 

NOTE 3 – DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
 

NET POSITION – Continued   

 

Equipment Replacement Fund  

 

The equipment replacement account is required under the grant agreement from the U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency and represents accumulated funds held for plan and equipment replacement. The 

activities for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows:  

 

December 31,

2014

Beginning Balance $ 33,323,172 32,747,398

Revenue and Expense Results within

Equipment Replacement Sub-Fund 36,322 (44,345)

Surplus Contributions 244,704 292,076

Investment Income (Loss) 10,918 (76,255)

Service Fees Charged to Villages 3,267,000 1,960,200

Depreciation (2,525,016) (1,555,902)

34,357,100 33,323,172

Less: Net Investment in Capital Assets (32,318,101) (29,320,997) 

Restricted for Future Plant 

and Equipment Replacement 2,038,999 4,002,175

December 31, 

2015

 
 

Working Cash Account 

 

The agreement dated November 28, 1977 and all amended agreements as of March 31, 1987 between 

the Villages were amended as of April 16, 1998. The purpose of the amendment was to provide the 

Authority the ability to maintain a working cash account as of the end of the fiscal year at a level not 

less than 25% of the annual operating and maintenance expenses exclusive of depreciation and 

equipment replacement. Working cash is calculated as the total general ledger cash and short-term 

investment balances less all current and prior open encumbrances (Operating Sub-Fund only). In the 

event the working cash balance at the end of the fiscal year is less than 25% of the annual operating 

expenses exclusive of depreciation and equipment replacement, each of the Villages will contribute an 

amount sufficient to adjust the working cash balance to the minimum amount required. The required 

contribution by the Villages is based upon their proportionate share of total operating expenses for the 

year. No additional funding is required by the Villages in the event the minimum 25% of operating 

expense working cash requirement is satisfied as of the end of the fiscal year. Additionally, the 

amendment also was designed to modify the payment process with the Villages. The following is the 

calculation of the working cash account required:  



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

18 

NOTE 3 – DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 

 

NET POSITION – Continued   

 

Working Cash Account – Continued 

 
Village of December 31, December 31, 

Glen Ellyn 2015 2014

Operating Expenses (as Defined in

Intergovernmental Agreement) $ 2,195,468 1,814,642 4,010,110 2,701,975

Minimum Working Capital Balance

(25% of Operating Expenses) $ 548,867 453,661 1,002,528 675,494

Cash and Investments - Operating Sub-Fund $ 1,178,745 1,227,861

Less: Outstanding Encumbrances (10,612) (7,595)

Working Cash 1,168,133 1,220,266

Less: Required Working Cash (1,002,528) (675,494)

Working Cash over Minimum Requirement 165,606 544,772

Village of 

Lombard

 
 

Working cash balance computation:  

 

Village of

Glen Ellyn Totals

Amount Required $ (548,867) (453,661) (1,002,528)

Amount Available 639,533 528,600 1,168,133

Cash Reserve Excess 90,666 74,999 165,606

Village of 

Lombard

 
 

Operating Account 
 

Any remaining balance of net position of the Operating Sub-Fund is reflected in the operating account. 

There was no balance as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. 
 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

19 

NOTE 3 – DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 

 

NET POSITION – Continued   

 

Net Position Restatement 

 

Net position was restated due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68. The following is a 

summary of the net position as originally reported and as restated: 

 

Net Position As Restated (Decrease)

Operating Sub-Fund $ 833,502 820,817 (12,685)

As Reported

 
 

NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 

assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries to the Authority’s employees. These risks are 

covered by commercial insurance. There has been no significant reduction in coverage in any program 

from coverage in the prior year. For all programs, settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance 

coverage for the past three years. 
 

Municipal Insurance Cooperative Association 
 

Effective January 1, 2003, the Authority joined together with other local governments in Illinois in the 

Municipal Insurance Cooperative Association (MICA). MICA is a public entity risk pool operating a 

common risk management and insurance program for its member governments. The Authority pays an 

annual premium to MICA based upon the Authority’s prior experience within the pool. Amounts paid into 

the pool in excess of claims for any coverage year may be rebated back to members in subsequent periods. 

The Authority is not aware of any additional premiums owed to MICA for the current or prior year claims. 

The Authority pays the first $1,000 for property, liability and crime claims. MICA maintains selective 

reinsurance contracts to cover potential claims to the total loss aggregate for all members of $11,750,000. 

MICA also purchases excess coverage of $400,000,000 for property liability and $9,000,000 for other 

liability.  



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

20 

NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  

 

RISK MANAGEMENT – Continued  

 

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA) 
 

Prior to joining MICA, the Authority participated in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 

(IRMA) through December 31, 2002. IRMA is an organization of municipalities and special districts in 

Northeastern Illinois which have formed an association under the Illinois Intergovernmental 

Cooperation’s Statute to pool its risk management needs. The agency administers a mix of self-

insurance and commercial insurance coverages; property/casualty and workers’ compensation claim 

administration/litigation management services; unemployment claim administration; extensive risk 

management/loss control consulting and training programs; and a risk information system and financial 

reporting service for its members. 

 

IRMA has actuarially calculated loss reserves for claims incurred while the Authority was an active 

member. The Authority has continuing responsibilities to IRMA for any open claims that exceed the 

reserved amounts. These claims are offset by the Authority’s $40,828 member reserve balance with 

IRMA.  

 

Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC) 

 

Risks for medical and death benefits for employees and retirees are provided for through the Authority’s 

participation in the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC) (through the Village of 

Glen Ellyn). IPBC acts as an administrative agency to receive, process and pay such claims as may 

come within the benefit program of each member. IPBC maintains specific reinsurance coverage for 

claims in excess of $50,000 per individual employee participant. The Authority pays premiums to IPBC 

based upon current employee participation and its prior experience factor with the pool. Current year 

overages or underages for participation in the pool are adjusted into subsequent years experience factor 

for premiums.  

 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

 

Litigation 

 

The Authority is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently 

determinable, in the opinion of the Authority's attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a 

material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Authority. 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

21 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) 

 

The Authority contributes to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), through the Village of 

Glen Ellyn’s, a defined benefit agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as 

a common investment and administrative agent for local governments and school districts in Illinois. 

The Illinois Pension Code establishes the benefit provisions of the plan; those provisions can only be 

amended by the Illinois General Assembly. IMRF provides retirement, disability, annual cost-of-living 

adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. IMRF issues a publicly available 

financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan 

as a whole, but not by individual employer. That report may be obtained online at www.imrf.org. The 

benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed by Illinois 

Compiled Statutes (ILCS) and can only be amended by the Illinois General Assembly. 

 

Plan Descriptions 

 

Plan Administration. All employees hired in positions that need or exceed the prescribed annual hourly 

standard must be enrolled in IMRF as participating members. The plan is accounted for on the economic 

resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions 

are recognized when earned in the year that the contributions are required, benefits and refunds are 

recognized as an expense and liability when due and payable.   

 

Benefits Provided. IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the 

Regular Plan (RP). The Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) plan is for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, 

and selected police chiefs. Counties could adopt the Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials 

elected prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was closed to new participants after that date). 

 

 IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired before January 1, 2011, are eligible for 

Tier 1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for pension benefits when they have at least eight years of 

qualifying service credit. Tier 1 employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced benefits) or after age 60 (at 

full benefits) with eight years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly 

for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, 

plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of 

earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any consecutive 48 months within the 

last 10 years of service, divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension is increased by 3% of the original 

amount on January 1 every year after retirement. 

http://www.imrf.org/


GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

22 

NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  

 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued  

 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) – Continued  

 

Plan Descriptions – Continued  

 

Benefits Provided – Continued. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 

benefits. For Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating 

employees who retire at age 62 (at reduced benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years 

of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount 

equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each 

year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of 

earnings is the highest total earnings during any 96 consecutive months within the last 10 years of 

service, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is increased on January 1 every year after retirement, 

upon reaching age 67, by the lesser of: 

 

 3% of the original pension amount, or  

 

 1/2 of the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original pension amount.  

 

Plan Membership. As of December 31, 2015, the following employees were covered by the benefit 

terms: 

 
Active Plan Members 17    

 
 

A detailed breakdown of IMRF membership for the Village, Library, and the Authority combined is 

available in the Village of Glen Ellyn’s comprehensive annual financial report. 

 

Contributions. As set by statute, the Authority’s Regular Plan Members are required to contribute 4.5% 

of their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in 

addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The 

Authority’s annual contribution rate for calendar year 2015 was 10.82% of covered payroll.  

 

Net Pension Liability. The Authority’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2015. The 

total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 

as of that date. 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

23 

NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  

 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued  

 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) – Continued  

 

Plan Descriptions – Continued  

 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed, 

as of December 31, 2015, using the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 

 

Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/2015

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age

Normal

Asset Valuation Method Market

Actuarial Assumptions

Interest Rate 7.49%

Salary Increases 3.75% - 14.50%

Cost of Living Adjustments 2.75%

Inflation 2.75%  

 

For nondisabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection 

scale MP-2014 (base year 2014). IMRF specific rates were developed from the PR-2014 Blue Collar 

Health Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience. For disabled 

retirees, an IMRF specific mortality tables was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 

(base year 2014). IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality 

Table applying the same adjustment that were applied for nondisabled lives. For active members, an IMRF 

specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2014). 

IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with adjustments to 

match current IMRF experience.  

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

24 

NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  

 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued  

 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) – Continued  

 

Discount Rate 

 

A Single Discount Rate of 7.49% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection of 

cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the plan members’ contributions 

will be made at the current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will be made at rates 

equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. The 

Single Discount Rate reflects: 

 

1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (during the period in which 

the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and  

 

2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds 

with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve) as of the 

measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected 

rate of return are not met).  

 

For the purpose of the most recent valuation, the expected rate of return on plan investments is 

7.50%, the municipal bond rate is 3.57%, and the resulting single discount rate is 7.49%. 

 

Discount Rate Sensitivity 

 

The following presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 

7.49%, as well as what the plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a Single 

Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher: 

 

Current 

 Discount Rate

(7.49%)

Net Pension Liability/ (Asset) $ 1,782,439 709,513 (172,745)

1% Decrease 1% Increase

(6.49%) (8.49%)

 
 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

25 

NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  

 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued  

 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) – Continued  

 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability 

 

Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Net Position Liability

  (B)    (A) - (B)  

Balances at December 31, 2014 $ 8,214,126 8,073,123 141,003

Changes for the Year:

Service Cost 123,338 -     123,338

Interest on the Total Pension Liability 605,696 -     605,696

Difference Between Expected and Actual

    Experience of the Total Pension Liability 97,561 -     97,561

Changes of Assumptions 9,922 -     9,922

Contributions - Employer -     128,318 (128,318)

Contributions - Employees -     54,005 (54,005)

Net Investment Income -     39,822 (39,822)

Benefit Payments, including Refunds

    of Employee Contributions (399,698) (399,698) -     

Other (Net Transfer) -     45,862 (45,862)

Net Changes 436,819 (131,691) 568,510

Balances at December 31, 2015 8,650,945 7,941,432 709,513

  (A)  

Total

Pension

Liability

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

26 

NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued  

 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS – Continued  

 

Illinois Municipal Retirement – Continued  

 

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions  

 

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Authority recognized pension expense of $178,077. At 

December 31, 2015, the Authority reported deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Totals 

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 64,778 -     64,778

Change in Assumptions 6,588 -     6,588

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual

    Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 447,384 -     447,384

Total Deferred Amounts Related to IMRF 518,751 -     518,751
 

 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 

pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows: 

 

Net Deferred

Fiscal Outflows

Year of Resources  

2016 $ 147,963

2017 147,096

2018 111,846

2019 111,846

2020 -     

Thereafter -     

Total 518,751
 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 
 

 

27 

NOTE 4 – OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 

 

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

 

The Authority has evaluated its potential other post-employment benefits liability. The Authority 

provides continued health insurance coverage at the active employer rate to all eligible employees in 

accordance with Illinois statutes, which creates an implicit subsidy of retiree health insurance. Former 

employees who choose to retain their rights to health insurance through the Authority are required to pay 

100% of the current premium. However, no former employees have chosen to stay in the Authority’s 

health insurance plan. Therefore, there has been 0% utilization and, therefore, no implicit subsidy to 

calculate in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 

Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Additionally, the Authority had no 

former employees for which the Authority was providing any explicit subsidy and no current employees 

with agreements for future explicit subsidies upon retirements. Therefore, the Authority has not recorded 

any post-employment benefit liability as of December 31, 2015. 

 

 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

December 31, 2015

Contributions as

a Percentage of

Fiscal Covered-Employee

Year Payroll

2015 $ 128,318      $ 128,318        $ -     $ 1,186,197 10.82%

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information:

Actuarial Valuation Date December 31, 2015

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level % Pay (Closed)

Remaining Amortization Period 28 Years

Asset Valuation Method 5-Year Smoothed Market

Inflation 3.0%

Salary Increases 4.40% - 16.00%

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%

Retirement Age See the Notes to the Financial Statements

Mortality RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table

Note: The information presented above is formatted to comply with the requirement of GASB Statement No. 67.

Contributions

Contribution

Determined

Actuarially Covered-

Employee

Payroll(Deficiency)

Excess/

Contribution 

Contribution

Determined

the Actuarially

in Relation to

28



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability 

December 31, 2015

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost $ 123,338        

Interest 605,696        

Changes in Benefit Terms -                

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 97,561          

Change of Assumptions 9,922            

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (399,698)       

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 436,819        

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 8,214,126     

Total Pension Liability - Ending 8,650,945     

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer $ 128,318        

Contributions - Members 54,005          

Net Investment Income 39,822          

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (399,698)       

Administrative Expense 45,862          

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (131,691)       

Plan Net Position - Beginning 8,073,123     

Plan Net Position - Ending 7,941,432     

Employer's Net Pension Liability $ 709,513        

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 91.80%

Covered-Employee Payroll $ 1,186,197     

Employer's Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 59.81%

2015

29



SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Combining Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2015

Equipment

Operating Replacement 

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Totals

Current Assets

Restricted Cash and Investments

Working Cash Account $ 1,178,745 -       1,178,745

Equipment Replacement Account -       3,371,262 3,371,262

Accounts Receivable - Net of Allowances

Accounts Receivable -       21,525 21,525

Member Contributions

Village of Lombard -       20,074 20,074

Deposits 40,828 -       40,828

Prepaids 64,010 -       64,010

Inventory -       41,322 41,322

Total Current Assets 1,283,583 3,454,183 4,737,766

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

Nondepreciable Capital Assets -       3,689,853 3,689,853

Depreciable Capital Assets -       88,870,523 88,870,523

Accumulated Depreciation -       (54,885,315) (54,885,315)

Total Noncurrent Assets -       37,675,061 37,675,061

Total Assets 1,283,583 41,129,244 42,412,827

Deferred Items - IMRF 518,751 -       518,751

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,802,334 41,129,244 42,931,578

ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

30



Equipment

Operating Replacement 

Sub-Fund Sub-fund Totals

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 118,262 1,346,581 1,464,843

Unearned Rental Revenue -       8,999 8,999

Accrued Payroll 60,005 -       60,005

Interest Payable -       56,408 56,408

Members Accounts Payable

Village of Glen Ellyn 110,014 3,196 113,210

Village of Lombard 32,135 -       32,135

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 25,933 506,221 532,154

Total Current Liabilities 346,349 1,921,405 2,267,754

Noncurrent Liabilities

Compensated Absences 103,732 -       103,732

Net Pension Liability - IMRF 709,513 -       709,513

Digester Loan Payable -       4,850,739 4,850,739

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 813,245 4,850,739 5,663,984

Total Liabilities 1,159,594 6,772,144 7,931,738

Net Investment in Capital Assets -       32,318,101 32,318,101

Restricted 642,740 2,038,999 2,681,739

Total Net Position 642,740 34,357,100 34,999,840

NET POSITION

LIABILITIES

31



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positon - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015

Equipment

Operating Replacement 

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Totals

Operating Revenues

Charges to Villages $ 4,000,893 3,267,000 7,267,893

Operating Expenses

 Personnel Services 1,545,124 -       1,545,124

IMRF Pension Expense 178,077 -       178,077

Contractual Services

Maintenance 444,683 -       444,683

Service Charge 126,500 -       126,500

Sludge Removal 150,591 -       150,591

Utilities 1,001,479 -       1,001,479

Insurance 399,545 -       399,545

Other 191,498 -       191,498

Commodities 150,690 -       150,690

Maintenance of Capital Facilities and Equipment -       228,045 228,045

Depreciation -       2,525,016 2,525,016

Total Operating Expenses 4,188,187 2,753,061 6,941,248

Operating Income (Loss) (187,294) 513,939 326,645

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Surplus Contribution -       244,704 244,704

Connection Fees -       145,130 145,130

Leachate Revenues -       133,389 133,389

Enernoc Demand Response -       23,960 23,960

Cell Tower Revenues -       26,651 26,651

Other Income 6,415 29,911 36,326

Sale of Capital Assets -       (11,735) (11,735)

Grant Revenue 57,000 57,000

Investment Income (Loss) 2,802 10,918 13,720

Interest Expense -       (139,939) (139,939)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 9,217 519,989 529,206

Change in Net Position (178,077) 1,033,928 855,851

Net Position - Beginning as Restated 820,817 33,323,172 34,143,989

Net Position - Ending 642,740 34,357,100 34,999,840

32



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

December 31, 2015

Equipment

Operating Replacement 

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Totals

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from Charges to Villages $ 4,037,043 3,912,820 7,949,863

Payments to Employees (1,723,201) -       (1,723,201)

Payments to Suppliers (2,365,761) 600,454 (1,765,307)

(51,919) 4,513,274 4,461,355

Cash Flows from Capital and Related

Financing Activities

Purchase of Capital Assets -       (4,859,061) (4,859,061)

Disposal of Capital Assets -       31,911 31,911

Interest and Fiscal Charges -       (139,939) (139,939)

Payment of Bond Principal -       (694,970) (694,970)

-       (5,662,059) (5,662,059)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Investment Income 2,802 10,918 13,720

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (49,117) (1,137,867) (1,186,984)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Beginning 1,227,862 4,509,129 5,736,991

Ending 1,178,745 3,371,262 4,550,007

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (187,294) 513,939 326,645

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating 

Income to Net Income to Net Cash

Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense -       2,525,016 2,525,016

Other Income 6,415 649,010 655,425

(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets 29,735 (3,190) 26,545

Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 99,225 828,499 927,724

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (51,919) 4,513,274 4,461,355

33



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Operating Sub-Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positon - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015

(with Comparative Information for the Eight Months Ended December 31, 2014)

See Following Page



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Operating Sub-Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positon - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015

(with Comparative Information for the Eight Months Ended December 31, 2014)

Variance

Over 

Actual (Under)

Operating Revenues

Charges to Villages $ 4,143,050 4,000,893 (142,157)

Operating Expenses

 Personnel Services 1,555,700 1,545,124 10,576

IMRF Pension Expense -       178,077 (178,077)

Contractual Services

Maintenance 605,600 444,683 160,917

Service Charge 126,500 126,500 -       

Sludge Removal 180,000 150,591 29,409

Utilities 849,250 1,001,479 (152,229)

Insurance 453,000 399,545 53,455

Other 214,000 191,498 22,502

Commodities 162,600 150,690 11,910

Total Operating Expenses 4,146,650 4,188,187 (41,537)

Operating Income (Loss) (3,600) (187,294) (183,694)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Other Income -       6,415 12,423

Interest Income (Loss) 3,600 2,802 23

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 3,600 9,217 12,446

Change in Net Position -       (178,077) (171,248)

Net Position - Beginning as Restated 820,817

Net Position - Ending 642,740

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015

Budget

34



Variance

Over 

Actual (Under)

$ 2,957,175 2,712,474 (244,701)

1,067,800 1,012,936 54,864

-       -       -       

433,675 347,100 86,575

84,000 84,000 -       

125,000 102,416 22,584

570,700 592,736 (22,036)

361,000 276,698 84,302

206,150 183,780 22,370

111,350 102,309 9,041

2,959,675 2,701,975 257,700

(2,500) 10,499 12,999

-       556 12,423

2,500 (11,055) 23

2,500 (10,499) 12,446

-       -       25,445

833,502

833,502

For the Eight Months Ended December 31, 2014

Budget

35



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Equipment Replacement Sub-Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positon - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015

(with Comparative Information for the Eight Months Ended December 31, 2014)

Variance

Over 

Actual (Under)

Operating Revenues

Charges to Villages $ 3,267,000 3,267,000 -       

Operating Expenses

 Maintenance of Capital Facilities and Equipment 10,732,000 228,045 10,503,955

Depreciation -       2,525,016 (2,525,016)

Total Operating Expenses 10,732,000 2,753,061 7,978,939

Operating Income (Loss) (7,465,000) 513,939 7,978,939

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Connection Fees 50,000 145,130 95,130

Surplus Contributions -       244,704 244,704

Leachate Revenues 117,000 133,389 16,389

Cell Tower Revenues 40,000 26,651 (13,349)

Enernoc Demand Response 36,000 23,960 (12,040)

Other Income 10,000 29,911 19,911

Sale of Capital Assets -       (11,735) (11,735)

Grant Revenue -       57,000 57,000

Debt Issuance 6,648,000 -       (6,648,000)

Investment Income (Loss) 14,000 10,918 (3,082)

Interest Expense (126,000) (139,939) (13,939)

CSO Loan Principal -       -       -       

Digester Loan Principal (473,000) (507,960) (34,960)

Biosolids Loan Principal (187,000) (187,010) (10)

Less Items to Statement of Net Position -       694,970 694,970

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 6,129,000 519,989 (5,609,011)

Change in Net Position (1,336,000) 1,033,928 2,369,928

Net Position - Beginning 33,323,172

Net Position - Ending 34,357,100

Budget

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015

36



Variance

Over 

Actual (Under)

$ 1,960,200 1,960,200 -       

3,937,000 191,397 3,745,603

-       1,555,902 (1,555,902)

3,937,000 1,747,299 2,189,701

(1,976,800) 212,901 2,189,701

40,000 63,192 23,192

525,000 292,076 (232,924)

77,000 101,765 24,765

40,000 17,306 (22,694)

38,000 13,440 (24,560)

10,000 19,138 9,138

-       16,878 16,878

-       -       -       

-       -       -       

7,000 (76,255) (83,255)

(85,000) (84,667) 333

(36,500) (36,319) 181

(225,500) (245,765) (20,265)

(367,000) (366,933) 67

-       649,017 649,017

23,000 362,873 339,873

(1,953,800) 575,774 2,529,574

32,747,398

33,323,172

For the Eight Months Ended December 31, 2014

Budget

37



December 31, 2015 (Unaudited)

Fiscal Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons

Year (in 000's) Percent (in 000's) Percent (in 000's) Percent (in 000's) Percent

2007 $ 2,572,422 48.42% $ 2,740,355 51.58% $ 1,374,215 39.04% $ 2,145,655 60.96%

2008 1,997,196 49.64% 2,026,438 50.36% 968,399 38.99% 1,515,318 61.01%

2009 2,371,469 48.39% 2,529,403 51.61% 1,102,789 36.32% 1,933,862 63.68%

2010 2,150,813 47.29% 2,397,365 52.71% 923,648 33.42% 1,840,040 66.58%

2011 2,269,677 47.17% 2,542,361 52.83% 1,022,527 34.17% 1,970,275 65.83%

2012 1,958,098 47.65% 2,151,514 52.35% 861,399 34.81% 1,612,956 65.19%

2013 1,755,400 46.70% 2,003,538 53.30% 792,733 34.97% 1,474,329 65.03%

2014 1,773,595 44.61% 2,201,911 55.39% 759,050 32.07% 1,607,612 67.93%

2014* 1,163,852 45.43% 1,398,187 54.57% N/A N/A N/A N/A

2015 1,939,993 45.25% 2,347,125 54.75% N/A N/A N/A N/A

*For the eight months ended December 31, 2014.

N/A - The North Regional Interceptor flows are no longer used in the billing computations in the Schedule

   of Allocation of Costs.

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Comparitive Flows - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Glen Ellyn Lombard LombardGlen Ellyn

Glenbard North Regional Interceptor

38



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS, ILLINOIS 

 

Schedule of Allocation Costs –  Continued  

December 31, 2015 (Unaudited) 
 

 

39 
 

The agreement between the Villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn for the purpose of jointly treating and 

processing wastewater requires certain information to accompany the annual financial statements. This 

information is from the Operating Sub-Fund. The combined data, including the Equipment Replacement 

and Working Cash Accounts, is part of the general purpose financial statements. Such required 

information for the year ended December 31, 2015, not included elsewhere in the accompanying 

financial statements follows:   
 

1. Total Water Flow 
 

Gallons

Participant (in 000's) Percent

Village of Lombard 2,347,125 54.75%

Village of Glen Ellyn 1,939,993 45.25%

4,287,118 100.00%

Glenbard Plant

 
 

2. Factors and Amounts Used in Computing Final Billing 
 

A. Operating revenue and expenses, based on wastewater flow, were allocated among the 

operating facilities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, as follows:  
 

Operating Revenue

Amounts Billed Prior

to Billing Adjustments $ 4,143,050

Other Revenues 9,217

Adjustment (142,157)

Operating Revenue Applicable

to Operating Expenses 4,010,110

Operating Expenses

Personnel Services $ 1,545,124

Contractual Services

Maintenance 444,683

Service Charge 126,500

Sludge Removal 150,591

Utilities 1,001,479

Insurance 399,545

Other 191,498

Commodities 150,690

Total Operating Expenses 4,010,110

Fund

Operating 

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS, ILLINOIS 

 

Schedule of Allocation Costs –  Continued  

December 31, 2015 (Unaudited) 
 

 

40 
 

2. Factors and Amounts Used in Computing Final Billing – Continued  

 

B. The allocation of operating expenses based on the wastewater flow of Glenbard Plant 

follows: 

 

Participant Percent

Village of Lombard $ 2,195,468 54.75%

Village of Glen Ellyn 1,814,642 45.25%

4,010,110 100.00%

Amount

 
 

C. The computation of the billing adjustment for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 

follows:  

 

Village of

Glen Ellyn Totals

Charges

Total Operating Expenses $ 2,195,468 1,814,642 4,010,110

Equipment Replacement Fund 1,713,122 1,553,878 3,267,000

Total Operating Charges 3,908,590 3,368,520 7,277,110

Amount Billed 3,986,594 3,423,456 7,410,050

Plus: Credit for Other Revenues Received 5,046 4,171 9,217

Revenues Available to Offset 

   Operating Changes 3,991,640 3,427,627 7,419,267

Amount Due from (to) Villages (83,050) (59,107) (142,157)

Lombard

Village of 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS, ILLINOIS 

 

Schedule of Allocation Costs –  Continued  

December 31, 2015 (Unaudited) 
 

 

41 
 

2. Factors and Amounts Used in Computing Final Billing – Continued  

 

D. Amounts due from (to) the Village of Lombard and the Village of Glen Ellyn at December 

31, 2015 are as follows:  

 

Village of

Glen Ellyn Totals

Amounts Due from (to) Villages

Billing Adjustment for the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2015 (as shown the prior page) $ (83,050) (59,107) (142,157)

Billing Adjustments:

July 2015 to December 2015 70,989 (70,989)      -   

Miscellaneous Receivables      -   16,886 16,886

Cumulative Balance Due from (to) Villages* (12,061) (113,210) (125,271)

*This balance is the end result of actual expenses compared to actual fiscal flow splits on an

  accrual basis after any necessary audit adjustments are made. 

Lombard

Village of 

 
 

3. Total Revenue Billed and Received per Authority: 

 
Receivable Receivable

(Payable) (Payable)

December 31, December 31, Amount 

Participant 2015 2014 Received

Village of Lombard $ 3,986,594 (12,061)   (73,897) 3,924,758 

Village of Glen Ellyn 3,423,457 (130,096) (170,807) 3,382,746 

7,410,051 (142,157) (244,704) 7,307,504 

Billed

Amount

 






































































































































































































































































